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rt of the Board of Directors to the Shareholders on the
Perform e Company for the Year 2021

Dear shareholders,

I am pleased to welcome you on behalf of the board of directors and me
to the Annual General Assembly Meeting of Fujairah Cement Industries, a
Public Joint Stock Company. I also have the honor to submit the annual
report for the fiscal year ended 315t December 2021.

Dear brothers,

In light of the negative impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic and the
challenges facing the cement industry in the United Arab Emirates
regarding the increase of production and decrease of demand, there
is a big difference between the production and demand. This led to
a decrease in cement prices sales and an increase in production
compared to other GCC countries. By the grace of Allah and then by
virtue of the efforts of its staff, despite the negative financial results,
Fujairah Cement Industries was able to withstand and maintain
continuity in production and sales processes.
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Dear brothers,

results of the business of the company during the vear 2021 ar
as follows:-

First: Production:-
The Clinker production quantity is 3,035 million tons.
The Cement production quantity is 1,010 million tons.

Second: Sales:-

The total sales revenues are 420 million dirhams.

Third: Total Results:-

The company sustained losses of 102,738 million dirhams, after surplus on land
revaluation the total comprehensive loss is 67,991 million.

Fourth: Most important events of the year ended 31/12/2021 are as
follows:
e Announcement of a new project of Ready-mix Concrete Plant in
Feb 2021 as a Subsidiary of Fujairah Cement Industries.

e FCI obtained ISO-9001:2015 re-certification as per the new
standard on Quality Management System.

e FCIalso obtained ISO-14001:2014 re-certification as per the new
standard on Environmental Management System.

e FClalso obtained ISO-45001:2018 re-certification as per the new
standard on Occupational Health & Safety Management System.

e FClregistered the least power consumption of cement mills.

e FCI has reduced the dependency on electricity supplied by
Federal Electricity & Water Authority (FEWA)
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Dear brothers,

- Fujairah Cement Factory is paying efforts to achieve the highest
standards of companies governance, the annual company’s report
for the year 2021 contains a detailed report on the company’s
governance & sustainability report also.

Dear Brothers,

[ would like to mention here that the company is always keen to employ

the local manpower. Thus, it succeeded in employing 15% of UAE citizens
in the year ended 31/12/2021.

Moreover, the company is always keen to train the local manpower by
giving training chances to the universities and higher institute students in
all the administrative and technical fields to enable them to gain practical
experiences.

Dear Shareholders,

We would like to thank you so much for your big trust which is the
motive for our endeavors as expected from you to enhance and improve
the performance of the company and achieve your expectations.

Finally, we would like to thank H. H. Sheikh Hamad Bin Mohamed Al-
Sharqi, Member of the Supreme Council, Ruler of Fujairah, and H. H. Sheikh
Mohamed Bin Hamad Al-Sharqi, Crown Prince of Fujairah, for their
support and attention are given to the company.
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We also extend our thanks to all the members of the Board of Directors,
Executive management, and the staff of the company for their efforts in
developing and implementing the work methodology to secure the
continuation of the company and improve the performance and achieve
the expected revenues. We promise you again, we will fulfill our promises,
that the management of the company will continue its efforts to achieve
the interest of the company and its shareholders.

We ask Almighty Allah to support us to achieve the interest of the
company and the shareholders.

Yours sincerely,
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
Fujairakh Cement Industries P.J.5.C
Fujairah — United Arab Emirates

Report on the Andit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fujairah Cement Industries P.J.S.C
(the “Company™) and its subsidiary (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing  (18As).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities Jor the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(IESBA Code) and the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Group's consolidated financial
statements in the United Arab Emirates and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed on the context of our
audjt of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

Valuation of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment included plant and machinery which are disclosed in Note (5) in
these consolidated financial statements, with carrying value of AED. 994,388,125 representing 85% of total
property, plant and equipment and 60% of total assets. The Group’s management has hired an external valuer to
estimate the recoverable amount based on fair vatue less cost of disposal and the management has concluded that
the fair value of plant and machinery is higher than its carrying value so that no impairment provision was
required for the year ended 31 December 2021. Also the Group’s management conducted a valuation of the land
which was carried out by the Dibba Municipality — Government of Fujairah of AED, 34,997,500 which is
disclosed in Note (5). Based on the valuation, the management decided to recognize the valuation and record the
difference between the carrying value and the valuation within equity under revaluation reserve amounting to
AED. 34,747,500,
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
Fujairah Cement Industries P.J.S.CC (Continued)

Valuation of property, plant and equipment (Continued)

We performed the following audit procedures :

¢ Evaluating the objectivity, independence and expertise of the external valuation expert appointed by the
management in vatuation of plant and machinery.

*  Evaluating the appropriateness of the underlying assumptions and the methodology used by the valuer and
market practice.

* Assessing the adequacy and completeness of the disclosures presented in these consolidated financial
statemnents.

Inventories

The verification of Group’s stock of raw materials, semi-finished products, burning media and finished products
as at 31 December 2021 representing 17% of total assets and require an independent surveyor to make estimate
of the quantities by using certain systematic measurements/calculations. The areas of focus are whether the
quantities reported by the surveyor are as per physical stock held by the Group as at 31 December 2021 and
valuation of inventories (including spare parts) at lower of cost or net realizable value as assessing net realizable
value is an area of significant judgment.

We performed the following audit procedures ;

Reviewed the background and experience of the surveyor.
Corroborated the results of the surveyor report fo the inventory movement.

Verified the physical existence of inventory on sample basis,

Tested the valuation of inventory including review of judgments and assumptions considered regarding
obsolescence and net realizable value.

Trade receivables

The Group is having significant trade receivables of AED. 94,304,374 representing 6% of total assets anc! there
is a risk over the recoverability of the overdue amounts. Due to the inherently judgmental nature in the
computation of the expected credit losses (ECL), there is a risk that the amount of ECL may be misstated.

We performed the following audit procedures :

* Performed test of control over trade receivables processes to determine whether controls are operating
effectively throughout the year,

* Requested direct confirmations from a sample of outstanding balances, performed alternate procedures for
non-replies, including verification of the supporting documents and subsequent collections.

® Reviewed the management assessment of recoverability of trade receivables through detailed analysis of
ageing of receivables and also assessed the adequacy of provisions taken based on Expected Credit Loss
“ECL Model” and reviewed the assumption used for ECL.

* Inquired from the management about any past due accounts with no subsequent collections and
management’s plan for recovering these receivables.

* Inquired about disputes, if any, with customers during the year and reviewed any uncollected amounts to
assess recoverability,

FEmphasis of a Matter

We draw attention to Note 3.1 to the consolidated financial statements which states that the Group incurred loss
of AED. 102,738,529 for the current year compared to loss of AED. 130,500,837 in the previcus year and the
current liabilities exceeded current assets by AED. 60,634,216 as at 31 December 2021, The accompanying
consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Group will continue as a going concern.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,




Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
Fujairah Cement Industries P.J.8.C (Continued)

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information included in
the Group’s Board of Directors Report of 2021, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon, We obtained the report of the Group’s Board of Directors, prior to the date of our auditor’s
report. Management is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the Consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), and applicable provisions of UAE Federal
Law No. 2 of 2015 and its amendments and the Articles of Association of the Company and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated financial siatements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is 2 high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with I1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if; individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional Jjudgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control,

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtaj d.up to the date of auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease$ ¢ i




Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
Fujairak Cement Industries P.J.8.C (Continued)

Auditor s Responsibilities Jor the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements {Cantinved)

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsiblie
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit. -

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
ost significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the

key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public

disclosure about the matter should not be commumicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such commun jcation.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by UAE Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 and its amendments we repert that:
1. We have obtained all the information and explanation we considered necessary for our audit.

2. The consolidated financial statements are prepared and comply, in all material respect with the applicable
provisions of UAE Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 and its amendments.

3. The Group has maintained proper books of account.

4. The financial information of the Director’s report are in agreement with the books of account and records of
the Group.

3. Transactions and terms with related parties are disclosed in Note 8.

6. The Social Contributions made during the year are disclosed in Note 23.

24 February 2022




FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 EXHIBIT A
2021 2020
Note AED AED
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 1,169,626,119 1,161,988,323
Right —of —use assets 6 109,645,475 113,425,153
Total Non-Current Assets 1,279,271,594 1,275,413,476
Current Assets
Inventories 7 287,044,698 282,575,476
Trade receivables 9 94,304,374 174,559,787
Advances and other receivables 10 8,574,346 5,936,864
Cash and cash equivalents 11 723,106 1,256,558
Total Current Assets 390,646,524 464,328,685
TOTAL ASSETS 1,669,918,118 1,739,742,161
SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders®’ Equity
Share capital 12 355,865,320 355,865,320
Statutory reserve 13 161,750,412 161,750,412
Voluntary reserve 14 222,536,002 222,536,002
Revaluation reserve 5 34,747,500 -
Retained earnings : 56,323,301 159,061,830
Total Shareholders’ Equity — Exhibit C 831,222,535 899.213,564
Non-Current Liabilities
Employees® end of service benefits 15 14,298,111 14,341,137
Lease liabilities 16 130,202,549 116,515,197
Bank borrowings 17 227,643,871 246,683,750
Trade and other payables 18 15,270,312 -
Total Non-Current Liabilities 387,414,843 377,540,084
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 132,512,638 142,539,060
Lease liabilities I6 13,039,784 21,888,555
Bank borrowings 17 305,728,318 298,560,898
Total Current Liabilities 451,280,740 462,988,513
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS? EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,669,218,118 1,739,742.161

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN
INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the best of our knowledge, the financial information included in these consolidated financial statements
fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition, result of operation and cash flows of the Group

as of, and for, the periods presenled therein.

These consolidated financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 February

2022 and signed on their behalf by

Board Member

%( ~
\\_:f_i,,él

Naser Khammas
{General Manager)



FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 EXHIBIT B
Note 2021 2020
AED AED
Revenue 21 419,977,908 557,906,925
Cost of sales (410,658,137)  (526,509,508)
Gross profit 9,319,771 31,397417
Sellig and distribution expenses 22 (53,577,550) (80,895,768)
General and administrative expenses 23 (14,279,639) (12,042,834)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables 9c) (15,095,491) (24,558,484)
Write-down of inventories to net realizable value 7(c) (5,568,397) (13,249,306)
Other income 24 1,651,339 1,887,310
Finance cost — bank borrowings (20,729,593) (28,621,440)
Finance cost - lease liabilities (4,458,969) (4,417,732)
Loss for the Year - Exhibit D (102,738,529  (130,500,837)

Other comprehensive income : _
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently fo profit or loss

Surplus on land revaluation 34,747,500 --
Total comprehensive loss for the year

- Exhibit C ' (67,991,029)  (130,500,837)
Basic loss per share 25 (0.289) (0.367)

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN

INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g

Mohame: Hamad Board M&rmber Naser Khammas
a)n- harqi {General Manager)
hairman)
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 EXHIBIT D
2021 2020
AED AED
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year - Exhibit B (102,738,529) (130,500,837)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 54,177,829 53,667,797
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 10,274,135 9,489,033
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - (62,947
Employees end of service benefits 1,114,706 1,150,049
Provision for impairment of trade receivables 15,095,491 24,558,484
Write-down of inventories to net realizable value 5,568,397 13,249,306
Finance cost — lease liabilities 4,458,969 4,417,732
Finance cost — bank borrowings 20,729,593 28,621,440
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities 8,680,591 4,590,059
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (10,037,619 102,769,441
Decrease in trade receivables 65,159,922 19,291,501
(Increase)/decrease in advances and other receivables {2,637,482) 708,173
Increase in trade and other payables 5,266,631 32,338,725
Settlements of employees end of service benefits (1,157,732) (1,029,244)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 65,274,311 158,668,655
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Addition of property, plant and equipment (27,068,125) (26,368,082)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 63,000
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (27,068,125) (26,305,082)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of lease liabilities (6,114,845) -
Proceeds from term loans - 40,000,000
Repayments of term loans (89,265,769) (76,282,204)
Proceeds from/(repayments of} other bank borrowings, net 77,393,310 (106,030,404)
Finance cost paid on bank borrowings (20,752.334) (29,748,192)
Net Cash Used in Finéncing Activities (38,739,638) (172,060,800)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (833,452) (39,697,227)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,256,558 40,953,785
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year - Note 11 723,106 1,256,558

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN

INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

1. STATUS AND ACTIVITIES

Fujairah Cement Industries P.J.S.C — Fujairah (the “Company”) is a public joint
stock company in the Emirate of Fujairah — United Arab Emirates established on
20 December 1979. The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on the Abu Dhabi Securities
Exchange and Boursa Kuwait (Kuwait Stock Exchange).

The main activities of Company and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as the
“Group™) are clinkers and hydraulic cement manufacturers and ready mixed concrete
manufacturing.

The Company is domiciled in Fujairah and its registered address is P.O. Box :
600, Fujairah — United Arab Emirates.

2. NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATION AND AMENDMENTS

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those applied by the Company in the interpretation of the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 except for the adoption of the following
new standards, interpretation and amendments.

2.1 Standards, interpretations issued and effective for the current year

The Group has adopted all the applicable new and revised standards and interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRSC) of the IASB that are relevant to
its operations and effective for the year beginning on 1 January 2021.

¢ JFRS-16 - Covid — 19 related Rent Concession:

In May 2020, the IASB issued Covid-19 Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS -16)
that provides practical relief to lessees in accounting for rent concessions occurring as a
direct consequence of Covid-19, by introducing a practical expedient to IFRS-16. The
practical expedient permits a lessee to elect not to assess whether Covid-19 related Rent
Concession is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election shall account for
any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the
same way it would account for the change applying IFRS -16 if the change were not a
lease modification,

However, the Group has not received Covid-19-related rent concessions, but plans to
apply the practical expedient if it becomes applicable within allowed period of
application.



FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATION AND AMENDMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.1 Standards, interpretations issued and effective for the current year
* Amendments to IFRS 9, 7,4,16 and IAS 39 - Interest Rate Benchmark reforms — Phase 2 -

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects
when an interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free
interest rate (RFR). The amendments include the following practical expedients:

* A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that
are directly required by the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest
rate, equivalent to a movement in a market rate of inferest

» Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and
hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being discontinued

* Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component

These amendments had no material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. The Group intends to use the practical expedients in future periods if they become
applicable,

2.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments in issue not yet effective

Effective date

IAS 16 — Amendment Property, plant and equipment: Proceeds before 1 January 2022
indented use

IFRS 3 — Amendment Reference to the Conceptual Frame work 1 January 2022

IAS 37 — Amendment Onerous Contract — Cost of fulfilling a contract 1 January 2022

IFRS standards 2018-2020 Annual Improvements (Amendments to IFRS 1, | January 2022
IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41)

IAS1 - Amendment Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2023
Non-current

[FRS- 17 -New . Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

IAS 1 — Amendment & Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023

IFRS practice statement 2

IAS 8- Amendment Definition of Accounting Estimate 1 Januvary 2023

The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards and interpretations in
future periods will have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. If applicable, the Group intends to adopt these new and amended standards and
interpretations when they become effective.
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FUJATRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3.

3.1

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Going concern

The Group incurred loss of AED. 102,738,529 for the current year compared to loss of
AED. 130,500,837 in the previous year and the current liabilities exceeded current assets
by AED. 60,634,216 as at 31 December 2021,

The Group’s management has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going
concern and is satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Therefore, the consolidated financial statements continue to be prepared on the going
concern basis.

Statement of compliance

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and applicable requirements of the UAE Companies
Law No. 2 0f 2015 and its amendments,

Federal Law No. 32 of 2021 on Commercial Companies (the “New Companies Law”) was
issued on 20 September 2021 and will come into effect on 2 January 2022, to entirely
replace Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 on Commercial Companies, as amended
(the “2015 Law”). The Group is in the process of reviewing the new provisions to apply
the requirements of new law.

3.3 Basis of measurément

34

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for land which has been measured on the basis of valuation.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in United Arab Emirates Dirham
(AED), which is the Group’s Functional Currency. Amounts presented in AED in these
consolidated financial statements are rounded to the nearest Dirhams.

Use of estimates, assumptions and judgment

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgment, estimates and assumption that affect the application of
policies and reported amount of assets and liabilities, income and expenses, other
disclosures and disclosures of contingent liabilities.

The Group based its assumptions, judgments and estimates on patameters available when
the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future development, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. Such changes are reflected in the consolidated financial statements when
they occur.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Use of estimates, assumptions and judgment (Continued)

Estimates, judgments and underlying assumption are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are
revised and in any future period affected.

Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
management historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under circumstance.

Estimates, assumptions and judgments with significant risk of material adjustment in the
future year mainly comprise of the following :

Provision relating to contracts

The Group reviews all its arrangements on a regular basis to identify any arrangements
where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contracts exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under contract
reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract which is the lower of the cost of
fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfill it. The Group
estimates any such provision based on the facts and circumstances relevant to the
contracts,

Determining the lease terms

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a
termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only
included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated),

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and
equipment for calculating depreciation. This estimate is determined after considering the
current usage of the assets compared to full utilization capabilities of the assets and
physical wear and tear. Group’s management reviews the residual value and useful lives
annually.

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews its property, plant and equipment to assess impairment, if there is an
indication of impairment. In determining whether impairment losses should be reported
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the Group makes judgments as to
whether there is any observable data indication that there is a reduction in the carrying
value of property, plant and equipment. Accordingly, provision for impairment is made
where there is an identified loss event or condition which, based on previous experience,
is evidence of a reduction in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3.4

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Use of estimates, assumptions and judgment (Continued)
Impairment of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. When inventories
become slow-moving or obsolete, an estimate is made of their net realizable value. For
individually significant amounts this estimation is performed on an individual basis.
Amounts which are not individually significant but which are slow moving or obsolete,
are assessed collectively and provision is made according to inventories type and degree
of ageing or obsolescence, based on historical selling prices.

Calculation of the quantity of inventory

The calculation of closing stock quantities of certain raw materials, clinker and finished
cement requires the use of estimates. At the end of each reporting period, management
appoints a surveyor to determine the volume of the inventory which is used by
management in a scientific formula by reference to its estimated density, to arrive to the
closing quantity. The inventory as reflected in the accounting records, closely
approximates the actual quantities.

Provision for expected credit loss

When measuring ECL the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information, which is based on assumptions for the future movement of different
economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other. Loss given default is an
estimate of the loss arising on default, It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into
account cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements. Probability of
default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is an estimate of
the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of which includes
historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions. Refer to note 9 for the
provision for the loss allowance for the year.

The Impact of the Spread of Coronavirus (COVID-19)

The coronavirus (COVID-19) had spread across several regions globally, including the
United Arab Emirates and on March 2020, the World Health Organization {WHO)
officially declared COVID-19 as a global pandemic. This impacted the global economy
and business sectors. The outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid 19) continue to progress and
evolve, causing disruption to business and economic activity and adversely affected the
demand, cost of sales and selling prices for the Group’s products. These accompanying
challenges caused the decline in the Group’s revenue compared with the previous year by
25%. The Group’s management is closely monitoring the situation and has taken the
necessary measures to address the situation in general. The extent and duration of these
effects is not specific and depends on future developments that cannot be accurately
predicted at this time.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

3.5 Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements incorporated the financial statements of the parent
company and entity controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when :

* The Group has power over the investee,

® The Group is exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee,

» The Group has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of controlled mentioned
above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts circumstances whether it has power over an investee,
including ;

s The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee.
* Rights arising from the other contractual arrangements.
» The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed during the year is included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date when Group
ceases to control the subsidiary,

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributable to the
owners of the Group and to the non-controlling interest even if this results in the non-
controlling interest having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of a subsidiary to bring
their accounting policies into line with the Group accounting policies.

All intragroup balances and income, equity and cash flows relating to transactions between
entities of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group interests and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Group.

The details of the subsidiary is as follows :

% of Country of
Entity ownership Principal activities incorporation
2021 2020
Fujairah Cement Industries PJSC FZE* 100 - Ready mixed concrete UAE
manufacturing

* The Establishment has not yet started operation. The factory is under construction.
-14-



FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment are carried at their cost/valuation less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment. Cost includes purchase cost
together with any incidental costs of acquisition.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The cost of day to day service of property and equipment is expensed as incurred.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use in the manner intended by

management.
Estimated useful lives
Years
Factory buildings 81035
Plant and machinery 6to 35
Furniture and fixtures 4
Vehicle and mobile plant 4
Tools and equipment 2-4
Quarry development cost 6 to 20

No depreciation is charged on land and capital work-in-progress. The depreciation
charge for each period is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income,

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted if appropriate at each reporting date. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss arising on disposal of any item of property and equipment {calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds, and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Capital work-in-progress

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes or for purposes not yet determined are carried at cost, less any recognized
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalized in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.2

4.3

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position based on current/non-current classification. An asset is current when it is -

~ Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

— Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

— Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date or

—Cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when :

— It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

— It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

— It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

— There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Leases

The Group evaluates at the beginning of the lease agreement whether the contract is a
lease agreement or includes a rental arrangement. If the contract is wholly or partially
transferring the right to control the use of a specific asset from one party to another for a
specific period of time in exchange for a specific compensation or allowance, then the
Group recognizes the right to use the assets and lease obligations with the exception of
short-term ieases of one year or less and the leases for leased assets with low value. For
these leases, the Group recognizes lease payments as an operating expense on a straight
line basis over the term of the lease, unless another systematic basis further presents the
period of time in which the economic benefits from the leased assets are amortized.

Lease obligations

Lease obligations are recognized and measured initially at the present value of lease
payments that have not been paid on the commencement date of the lease contract, and
those payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the contract, and if it is
not known, then the Group uses the incremental borrowing interest rate.

Unpaid lease payments include:

—Fixed lease payments less any lease incentives receivable.

— Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, measured initially using the
index or rate at the start date of the lease.

—The amount the lessee is expected to pay the lessor when there is a residual value
guaranteed in the lease agreement,

— The price of exercising buying options, if the lessee is reasonably certain of exercising
the options.

— Termination fines, if the lease reflects the exercise of the option to terminate the lease.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES PJS.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4,
4.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

Lease obligations (Continued)

The lease liability is presented as a separate component of the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect
the interest on the lease obligation and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments paid.

The Group re-measures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use assets) whenever:

— The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances
that lead to a change in the evaluation of the purchase option exercise, in which case
the lease liability is re-measured by discounting the revised lease payments using the
revised discount rate.

— Rental payments change due to changes in an index or rate or change in expected
payments under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the rental liabilities are re-
measured by discounting the adjusted rental payments using an unchanged discount
rate (unless the rental payments change due to the change in the floating interest rate,
In this case, the adjusted discount rate is used.)

— The lease is amended and the lease amendment is not counted as a separate lease
contract, in which case the lease liabilities are re-measured based on the modified lease
term by discounting the modified lease payments using the modified discount rate at
the date of modification.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets include the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability,
lease payments made on or before the inception day, minus any lease incentives received
and any initial direct costs subsequently measured minus accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

When the Group incurs a commitment to the costs of dismantling and removing a leased
asset, restoring the site on which it is located, or restoring the asset to the required
condition under the terms of the lease contract, the provision is recognized and measured
in accordance with IAS (37) and to the extent that the costs relate to the right-of-use
assets, the costs are included in related right-of-use assets, unless these costs are incurred
to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the contract term or the
useful life of the specified asset.

If the lease contract transfers ownership of the underlying asset or right-of-use cost
reflects that the Group expects to exercise the purchase option, then the related use value
is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. Depreciation starts on the date
of commencement of the lease agreement.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4,
43

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-to-use assets are presented as a separate component in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

The Group applies IAS (36) to determine whether the right to use value has decreased
and calculates any impairment loss identified as described in the “property, plant and
equipment” policy.

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 allows a lessee not to separate the non-leased
components, and instead any lease contract and associated non-lease components are
counted as a single arrangement, The Group did not use this practical expedient. For
contracts that contain a leasing component and one or more leasing or non-leasing
components, the Group allocates consideration in the contract to each leasing component
based on the independent relative price of the leasing component and the total sum of the
single price of the non-leasing components.

4.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

4.5

Non-financial assets (cash generating units) are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence that a
specific non-financial asset may be impaired. If such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

There is group range of internal and external factors are considered as part of indicator
review process, however, an impairment assessment is performed.

Impairment testing requires an estimation of the fair values less cost to sell and value in
use of the cash generating units. The recoverable amounts require the Group to estimate
the amount and timing of future cash flows, disposal value of assets and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of the cash flows.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
* Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortized cost (AC), fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), and
fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.JS.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
4.5 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

* Initial recognition and measurement {Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair
value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is
referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will resuit from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being
the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four

categories:

— Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

— Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI) with
recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

— Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
(OCI) with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity
instruments)

— Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As of reporting date, that the Group contracted with only the financial assets at
amortized cost (debt instrument).

Financial assets at amortized cost (Debt jastrn ments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met:

— The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and,
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
4.5 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

* Financial assets at amortized cost (Debt instruments) (Continued)

— The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding,

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest
(EIR) method and are subject to impairment, Gains and losses are recognized in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortized cost includes trade receivables and other,
cash and cash equivalents and due from related parties.

¢ Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment,

In certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset o be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractval amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

¢ Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
arrangement provision of the instrument.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.).S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, with interest expense recognized on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial Kabilities when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of weighted average cost or net realizable value cost
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and
fixed overhead expenditures based on the normal operating capacity but excluding
borrowing costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of preparing consolidated statement of cash flows {Exhibit D) cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and cash equivalents and fixed deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less from date of placement.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Trade payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to
the end of the financial year which are unpaid and the amounts are unsecured. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within

12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4,10 Provisions

4.11

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good obligations are recognised
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense

Employees benefits

Employees’ end of service benefits for Non-UAE Citizens is calculated in accordance
with U.AE. Labour Law requirements.

Retirement pension and social benefit scheme for the U.A.E citizens are made by the
Group in accordance with Federal Law.

4.12 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates,

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as other income or finance costs.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.12 Borrowings (Continued)

4.13

4.14

4.15

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity
instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a
gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, which
is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and
the fair value of the equity instruments issued. Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the period which they are incurred.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
financial statement of financial position if, any only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Revenue from contracts with customers balances
Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amount due from customers for goods sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. The accounting policies of financial assets in financial
instruments paragraph details the initial recognition and subsequent measurement of
trade receivables.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services
to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when
the Group performs under the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2821

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.16 Revenue recognition

I

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Contract revenue

The Group recognize revenue from contracts with customers based on the five step
model set out in IFRS 15.

Identify the contract(s) with a customer

A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates
enforceable rights and obligations, and are committed to perform criteria are met.

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good
or service to customer,

Determine the transaction price

The transaction price represent the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring good or service to a customer.

4. Allocate the transaction price to performance obligation

For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group will allocate
the transaction price to each performance obligation based on stand alone selling
prices for each good or service.

Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognize revenue over time if one
of the following criteria is met :

i} The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as and when the Group performs or ;

i) The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced or ;

iii) The Group performance does not create as asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

For performance obligation, where none of the condition are met, revenue is recognized
at the point in time at which the performance is satisfied.

When the Group satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods
and services, it creates a contract asset based on the amount of consideration earned by
the performance. Where the amount of consideration received from a customer exceeds
the amount of revenue recognised, this gives rise to a contract liability.

Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at the point of time when control of the goods
is transferred to the buyer usually on delivery of the goods.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.17 Foreign currencies

4.18

4.19

4.20

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to UAE Dirhams at the foreign
exchange rates at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date
are translated to UAE Dirhams at the spot foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. The
foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between the
amortized cost in UAE Dirhams at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective
interest and payments during the year, and the amortized cost in the foreign currency
translated at the spot exchange rate at the end of the year.

Non monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated to UAE Dirhams at the spot exchange rate at the date on which the fair
value is determined. Non monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the spot exchange rate the date of the
transaction.

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are generally recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as liability in the consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Shareholders.

Value added tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except :

+ When VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, VAT is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition

of the asset or as part of the expense items, as applicable.
e When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of VAT included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of reccivables or payables in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Basic eamnings per share is calculated by dividing:

¢ The profit attributable to shareholders of the Group, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary shares.

* by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares if any.

4.21 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations depending on whether some uncertain
future events occur, or they are present obligations but payments are not probable or the
amounts cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

b) Land mentioned above of AED. 34,997,500 is stated at valuation by Land and Property
Management — Dibba Municipality — Government of Fujairah and the difference amounting
to AED. 34,747,500, was credited to revaluation reserve (Exhibit A),

¢) Part of the factory buildings and plant and machinery are constructed/erected on leased land
obtained from the Dibba Municipality — Government of Fujairah.

d) There is a registered chattel mortgage (being executed) over the Waste Heat Recovery
based captive power plant expansion project included in plant and machinery mentioned
above and an assignment of insurance policy covering the project in favour of the bank
against bank borrowings (Note 17).

e) Insurance policy covering movable assets is assigned in favor of a bank against bank
borrowings (Note 17).

f) Commercial mortgage over thermal power plant included in plant and machinery mentioned
above, assignment of insurance policies covering the cement factory and thermal power
plant and assignment of leasehold rights over the land on which the thermal power plant is
located are provided as securities against bank borrowings (Note 17).

g) There is a registered mortgage and assignment of insurance policy over specific machinery
upgraded (Note 17) included in plant and machinery mentioned above.,

h) Depreciation is fully charged to cost of sales.

i} Cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment that was still in use, at the end of
the reporting period amounted to AED. 353,478,614 (2020 : AED. 351,845,031).

. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The movement of the right-of-use assets is as follows :

2021 2020
AED AED
Cost :
At 1 January 132,403,222 132,403,222
Additions during the year 6,494,457 --
Balance at 31 December 138,897,679 132,403,222
Accumuiated Depreciation :
At 1 January 18,978,069 9,489,034
Charged for the year 10,274,135 9,489,035
Balance at 31 December 29,252,204 18,978,069
Net book Value at 31 December — Exhibit A 109,645,475 113,425,153
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

7. INVENTORIES

a) This item consists of the following :

Balance at 31 December — Note 7(a)

2021 2020

AED AED
Raw materials 17,006,665 20,126,092
Semi-finished products 66,175,823 48,811,461
Finished products 3,108,902 2,553,490
Total 86,291,390 71,491,043
Spare parts 128,031,829 127,927,731
Allowance for slow-moving spare parts — Note 7(b) (20,702,113) (20,702,113)
Net 107,329,716 107,225,618
Burning media 73,212,154 81,117,905
Bags and packing material 722,634 693,553
Total 73,934,788 81,811,458
Goods-in-transit 19,488,804 22,047,357
Total — Exhibit A 287,044,698 282,575,476

Insurance policy is assigned against bank borrowings.
b) Movement in allowance to slow-moving spare parts are as follows :

2021 2020

AED AED
Balance at 1 January 20,702,113 24,000,000
Obsolete stores written off -- (3,297,887)
20,702,113 20,702,113

¢) Inventories have been reduced by AED. 5,568,397 (2020 : AED. 13,249,306) as a result

of the write-down to net realizable value. This write-down was recognized as expenses

(Exhibit B).
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FUJATRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

8. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into various transactions with related
parties. Related parties represent major sharcholders, directors and key management personnel
of the Group and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such
parties. The prices and terms of these transactions are agreed with the Group’s management,

¢ At the statement of consolidated financial position date, balances of related parties are as

follows :
2021 2020
AED AED
Balances due from related parties
(included in trade receivables) 1,104,667 1,849,546
Balances due to related parties
(included in trade and other payables) 84,876 29,797

e The following are the details of significant related party transactions :

2021 2020

AED AED
Sales 2,503,376 4,001,578
Purchases/service contracts 1,166,490 1,097,851
Construction of property, plant and equipment 633,950 795,100

* The remuneration , salaries and other benefits of key management staff during the year
are as follows :

2021 2020
AED AED
Salaries and other benefits of key management staff 3,855,995 3,730,647
9. TRADE RECEIVABLES
a) This item consists of the following :
2021 2020
AED AED
Trade receivables 135,942,404 201,111,959
Provision for impairment of trade receivables
- Note 9(c) (41,638,030) (26,552,172)
Net amount - Exhibit A 94,304,374 174,559,787
Coverage :
Trade receivables against BG & L/C’s 45,713,677 99,896,730
Trade receivables 90,228,727 101,215,229
Total 135,942,404 201,111,959
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

9. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

b) Trade receivables include :

* 5 customers (2020 : AED. 5 customers) representing 78% (2020 : 65%) of the trade
receivables.

¢ AED. 63.7 Million (2020 : AED. 63.4 Million) which is past due of this
AED. 4.8 Million (2020 : AED. 10.4 Million) is secured.

® Trade receivables are assigned against bank borrowings (Note 17).

The Group applies IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected credit loss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumption
made during the current reporting period in assessing the provision for impairment
of trade receivables.

The average credit period for the trade receivables is 119 days (2020 : 133 days).
No interest is charged on trade receivables in the normal course of business.

¢) The details of movement in provision for impairment of trade receivables during the year
are as follows :

2021 2020

AED AED
Balance at 1 January 26,552,172 2,004,656
Additions during the year 15,095,491 24,558,484
Written off (9,633) (10,968)
Balance at 31 December — Note 9(a) 41,638,030 26,552,172

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group considers any change in
the credit quality of the trade receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to

the reporting date.
Geographical Analysis
The geographical analysis of trade receivables are as follows :
2021 2020
AED AED
Within U.A.E 96,661,418 117,321,629
Outside U.A.E 39,280,986 83,790,330
Total 135,942,404 201,111,959
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

10. ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

This item consists of the following :

Prepayments
Advances to suppliers
Other receivables

Total - Exhibit A

I1. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This item consists of the following :

Cash in hand
Bank balances - Current accounts

Total ~ Exhibit A & D

12. SHARE CAPITAL

This item consists of the following :

Authorized share capital is AED. 355,865,320 ordinary
share of AED, 1 each fully paid — Exhibit A & C

13. STATUTORY RESERVE

This item consists of the following :

Balance at 1 January

Balance at 31 December - ExhibitA & C

2021 2020
AED AED
683,781 636,379
2,228,715 3,558,153
5,661,850 1,742,332
8,574,346 5,936,864
2021 2020
AED AED
114,651 153,463
608,455 1,103,095
723,106 1,256,558
2021 2020
AED AED
355,865,320 355,865,320
2021 2020
AED AED
161,750,412 161,750,412
161,750,412 161,750,412

In accordance with UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 and its amendments and
Company's Articles of Association, 10% of the profit of each year is to be appropriated
to a statutory reserve. Transfer may be discontinued when the reserve reaches 50% of the
paid-up capital. This reserve is not available for distribution except in circumstances

stipulated by the law.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

14.  VOLUNTARY RESERVE

15.

16.

This item consists of the following :

2021 2020
AED AED
Balance at 31 December - Exhibit A & C 222,536,002 222,536,002

In prior years, 10% of the profits was appropriated to a voluntary reserve. This reserve is
distributable when approved by a shareholders' resolution based on the recommendation
of the Board of Directors in accordance with UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 and its
amendments and the Company's Articles of Association.

EMPLOYEES END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

The details of movement in this item are as follows

2021 2020

AED AED
Balance at 1 January 14,341,137 14,220,332
Charge for the year 1,114,706 1,150,049
Settlements during the year (1,157,732) (1,029,244)
Balance at 31 December - Exhibit A 14,298,111 14,341,137

LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities represent the long term lease plots of land fro
The details of movements in this item are as follows

m Government of Fujairah.

2021 2020

AED AED
Balance at | January 138,403,752 133,986,020
Additions during the year 6,494,457 --
Finance cost on lease liabilities 4,458,969 4,417,732
Payment during the year (6,114,845) -
Balance at 31 December 143,242,333 138,403,752
Non-Current -Exhibit A 130,202,549 116,515,197
Current -Exhibit A 13,039,784 21,888,555
Total 143,242,333 138,403,752
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

17. BANK BORROWINGS
a) Bank-term borrowing

i) This item consists of the following :

2021 2020

AED AED
Balance at 1 January 342,850,828 379,133,032
Add: Received during the year - 40,000,000
Less: Repaid during the year (89,265,769) (76,282,204)
Balance at 31 December 253,585,059 342,850,828
Non-Current portion — Note 17(c)(i) 227,643,871 246,683,750
Current portion —~ Note 17(c)(ii) 25,941,188 96,167,078
Total- Note 17(aii) 253,585,059 342,850,828

ii} Break-up of term loans are as follows :

Loan Maturity date 2021 2020

AED AED
Term loan 1 January 2030 53,240,681 65,240,681
Term loan 2 December 2028 14,836,699 17,202,468
Term loan 3 December 2021 -- 12,500,000
Term loan 4 November 2026 101,807,679 124,907,679
Term loan 5 December 2028 83,700,000 93,000,000
Term loan 6 September 2021 - 30,000,000

Total — Note 17(a)(i) 253,585,059

Term loan 1

342,850,828

During 2017, the Group entered into an Islamic financing arrangement (Ijarah) from a
bank operating in the United Arab Emirates for AED. 114,445,987 to settle the existing
term loan. During November 2017, the outstanding balance of AED, 101,240,681 were
rescheduled to be repaid in 22 equal quarterly installments of AED, 3,000,000 each
commenced in January 2018 and ending in April 2023 and the remaining amount of
AED. 35,240,681 to be settled in July 2023. The existing ljarah balance of
AED. 53,240,681 as at 31 December 2021 has been refinanced by the same bank to be
repaid in 31 equal quarterly installments of AED. 1,664,063 commencing from April 2022

and the remaining amount of AED. 1,654,728 to be settled in January 2030.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

17. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

a) Bank-term borrowing (Continued)

Term loan 2

During 2017, the Group entered into an Islamic financing arrangement (Mudaraba) from
a bank operating in the United Arab Emirates for AED. 30,000,000 of which
AED. 21,893,199 was drawn down, to finance the upgrade of the raw mill/ slag grinding
project. Qut of the outstanding amount of AED. 19,407,168, the Group paid
AED. 54,391 in January 2020 and the balance is scheduled to be repaid in 27 equal
quarterly installments of AED. 716,769 each commencing in April 2020 and ending in
August 2026. In 30 June 2021, the outstanding amount of AED. 15,768,929 is
rescheduled to be repaid in 30 quarterly installments commencing from July 2021 and
ending December 2028.

Term loan 3

in two tranches as follows i) 16 equal quarterly instaliments of AED, 2,500,000 each
commenced in February 2018 and ending in November 2021 and i} 16 equal quarterly
installments of AED. 625,000 each commenced in March 2018 and ending in December
2021. During the year 2021, the loan has been settled fully.

Term loan 4

During 2017, the Group was sanctioned this loan from a bank operating in the
United Arab Emirates for a maximum amount of AED. 209,680,000 of which
AED. 209,607,679 was drawn down, 1o refinance the existing liabilities with other banks.
Repayment of this loan is in 26 equal quarterly installments of AED. 7,700,000 each
commenced in May 2018 and ending in August 2024 and the remaining amount of
AED. 9,407,679 to be settled in November 2024. In September 2021, the outstanding
amount of AED. 101,807,679 is rescheduled to be repaid in 20 quarterly installments
commencing from February 2022 and ending in November 2026. The installments details
are as below :

- 8 installments of AED. 2,500,000
- 4 installments of AED. 5,000,000
- 4 installments of AED. 7,000,000
- 3 instaliments of AED. 9,000,000
- 1 instaliment of AED. 6,807,679
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

17. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
a) Bank-term borrowing (Continued)

Term loan §

During 2019, the Group was sanctioned and entered into an Islamic financing
arrangement (Mudaraba) from a bank operating in United Arab Emirates for
AED. 100,000,000 to settle existing liabilities with other banks. The loan is repayable in
28 quarterly instaliments, commencing in March 2020 and ending in December 2026. In
June 2021, the outstanding amount of AED, 91,000,000 is rescheduled to be repaid in
31 quarterly installments commencing from June 2021 and ending in December 2028.

The installments details are as below :

- 2 installments of AED. 2,000,000
1 installment of AED. 3,300,000

8 installments of AED. 2,325,000
20 installments of AED. 3,255,000

Term loan 6

During 2020, the Group was sanctioned and entered into a loan agreement from a bank
operating in the United Arab Emirates for an amount of AED, 40,000,000 to settle the
existing revolving loan with the same bank. The loan is repayable in 12 monthly
installments, commencing in October 2020 and ending in September 2021, During the

year 2021, the loan has been settled fully.
b) Other bank borrowings

This item consists of the following :

2021
AED
Trust receipts 112,403,242
Short terms loans 135,000,000
Overdrafis 32,383,888
Total - Note 17(c)(ii) 279,787,130
¢) Details of bank borrowings are as follows :
i) Non-current portion
This item consists of the following :
2021
AED
In the second year 27,605,250
In the third to fifth year 147,766,429
After five year 52,278,192
Total — Exhibit A 227,643,871

-35.

2020
AED

125,669,135
50,000,000
26,724,685

202,393,820

——
—_——

2020
AED

55,667,078
169,399,594
21,617,078
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

17. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

¢) Details of bank borrowings are as follows : (Continued)

ii) Current portion

2021 2020

AED AED
Bank borrowings - Note 17(a)(i) 25,941,188 96,167,078
Other bank borrowings — Note 17(b) 279,787,130 202,393,820
Total — Exhibit A 305,728,318 298,560,898

Total Bank borrowings

533,372,189

545,244,648

iii} Bank borrowings are secured by:

Registered charge over Thermal Power Plant (including machinery).

Registered chattel mortgage (to be executed) over the Waste Heat Recovery
based captive power plant expansion project

Assignment of insurance policy for AED. 437.4 million covering factory on a
pari passu basis.

Assignment of insurance policy for AED. 236.9 million covering the Thermal
Power Plant on a pari passu basis.

Assignment of insurance policy for AED. 124.4 million covering the Waste
Heat Recovery based captive power plant expansion project.

Assignment of insurance policies covering moveable assets on pari passu basis .
Assignment of leasehold rights (between the Company & Dibba Municipality)
over the land on which the Thermal Power Plant is located.

Assignment of insurance policy over inventories on pari passu basis.

General assignments of trade receivables in favor of the bank.

Registered mortgage and assignment of insurance policy over specific

machinery upgraded.
*  Promissory note.

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

This items consists of the following :

2021 2020

AED AED
Trade payables 127,621,216 117,074,736
Dividends payable 3,971,870 3,972,703
Advanced received from customers 285,699 2,110,375
Accrued expenses 13,164,297 16,598,895
Accrued interest payables 2,419,451 2,442,192
Others 320,417 340,159
Total 147,782,950 142,539,060
Non-Current — Exhibit A 15,270,312 --
Current — Exhibit A 132,512,638 142,539,060
Total 147,782,950 142,539,060
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

19. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

20.

Financial instruments comprise financial assets and financial liabilities.

Financial assets consist of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivable and others.
Financial liabilities consist of trade and other payables, bank borrowings and lease
liabilities.

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are not materially different from
their carrying values as at 31 December 2021.

The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction in the principal market at measurement date.

The fair value measurements is based on presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either :

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
® In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

If an asset or liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the
Group measures assets at a “bid” price and liabilities at an “ask” price.

The Group recognizes transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the end of
the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Fair value is applicable to both financial and non-financial instrument.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherited in the Group’s activities but it is managed through a process of ongoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls,

Operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being in the business,

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks included : capital risk, market risk
(foreign currency risk and interest rate risk) credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group secks to minimize the effects of these risks through internal reports which
analyze the risk to achieve its risk management function and monitor risks and reviews
policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures.

20.1 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets.
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

20. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
20.2 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposure within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on risk.

i} Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rate.

The Group’s activities are not exposed to the financial risks of changes in foreign
currency exchange rates because substantially all the financial assets and liabilities
are denominated in United Arab Emirates Dirhams (AED) or US Dollars to which
the AED is pegged.

ii) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk resultant from its borrowings, The risk is
managed by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating interest rates
balance at the start of the financial year.

Details of financial assets and liabilities exposed to interest rate risk as at
31 December 2021 are as follows :

Effective interest rate

2021 2020
Bank loans 3 months +2.5% to 3.5% p.a + EIBOR+ 3 months + 2.5% to 3% p.a +
3.4% to 3.7% p.a swap 3.4% t0 3.7% p.a swap
3 months +2.25% to 2.5% p.a + EIBOR 3 months +2.25% t0 2.5% p.a +
EIBOR
1 months +2.3% p.a + 1 months +2.3% p.a +
EIBOR EIBOR
Short-term loans 1 month EIBOR + 1.75% p.a 1 month EIBOR + 1.75% p.a

20.3 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group, if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from
cash flows from financial assets recorded at amortized cost such as cash and cash
equivalents and trade receivables and due from related parties.

The Group trade with recognized, creditworthy parties. The Group’s policy that all
customers are analyzed for creditworthiness on credit terms and are subject to monitor
the receivable balances of customers on an ongoing basis, that receivable balances are
the maximum exposure to credit risk relating to trade receivables and due from related
parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

20. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

20.3 Credit risk (Continued)

The Group applies IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit loss (ECL)
by grouping all financial assets based on shared credit risk charactenstics and days past
due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of that business transaction
and the corresponding historical credit loss experienced within this period.

The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and future information on macro
economic factors affecting the abilities of the customers to settle their receivable
balances.

With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets such as cash and cash
equivalents including deposits arising from default of counter party to limit that credit
risk, the Group’s cash is placed with banks of repute. Management is confident that it
does not result in any credit risk to the Group as the banks are major banks operating in
UAE.

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables based on the Group’s
provision matrix.

2021 2020

Gross Impairment Gross Impairment

AED AED AED AED
Neither past due nor
impaired 72,243,625 (4,217,060) 137,758,030 (3,664,755)
Past due 0-180 days 14,350,996 (1,812,302) 12,166,447 (462,063)
Past due 180-360 days 5,102,766 (1,711,149) 12,206,127 (4,588,271)
Past due 360 and above 44,245,017 (33,897,519) 38,981,355  (17,837,083)
Total 135,942,404 (41,638,030) 201,111,959 (26,552,172)

20.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with its financial liabilities at maturity date. The Group monitors
its risk to shortage of funds using a cash flow model. This tool considers the maturity of
financial assets and projected cash flows from operation and capital projects.

The Group objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the use of bank borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

20.

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

20.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

21,

The details of maturity dates of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are

as follows :

As at 31 December 2021 :

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables

Other receivable

Total

Financial Liabilities
Bank borrowings

Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities

Total

As at 31 December 2020 :

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables

Other receivable

Total
Financial Liabilities
Bank borrowings

Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities

Total

REVENUE

This items consists of the following :

Revenue recognized at point in time

Sales ;

Within UAE
Qutside UAE-GCC
Other countries

Total - Exhibit B

Less than From 3 months Above
three months to one year 1-5 years 5 vears Total
AED AED AED AED AED
723,106 — - - 723,106
56,925,540 37,378,83 - - 94,304,374
- 5,661,850 - - £,661,850
57,648,646 43,040,684 - - 100,689,330
148,846,595 156,881,723 175,365,678 52,278,193 533,372,189
- 132,226,939 15,270,312 - 147,497,251
- 13,039,784 60,294,530 69,908,019 143,242,333
148,846,595 302,148,446 250,930,520 122,186,212 824 111,773
Less than From 3 months Above
three months to one vear 1-5 years 5 years Total
AED AED AED AED AED
1,256,558 - — - 1,256,558
105,459,301 69,100,486 - - 174,559,787
-- 1,742,332 - - 1,742,332
106,715,859 70,842,818 - - 177,558,677
144,660,139 153,900,759 225,066,672 21,617,078 545,244 648
- 140,428,685 - - 140,428,685
- 21,888,555 39,485,324 77,029,873 138,403,752
144,660,139 316,217,999 264,551,996 08,646,251 824,077,085
2021 2020
AED AED
111,857,489 199,223,336
67,362,164 156,762,934
240,758,255 201,920,655
419,977,908 557,906,925
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

22. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

This item consists of the following :

Transportation expenses
Export expenses

Salaries and related benefits
Vehicle expenses

Business promotion

Toll fees and charges
Others

Total — Exhibit B

23. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

a) This item consists of the following :

Salaries and related benefits
Insurance

Legal, visa, professional and related expenses
Social contributions — Note 23(b)
Short-term lease expenses
Utilities

Telephone and communication
Travelling and entertainment
Repairs and maintenance

Medical expenses

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Others

Total — Exhibit B

2021
AED

24,821,137
26,880,697
1,617,761
26,150
10,000
72,527
149,278

53,577,550

2021
AED

6,826,739
510,765
1,890,340
1,021,602
716,406
297,792
363,174
26,918
177,118
1,265,906
785,102
397,780

14,279,639

2020
AED

47,074,382
31,344,576
1,591,690
12,791
18,120
497,948
356,261

80,895,768

2020
AED

5,897,666
441,516
1,604,846
1,009,727
661,239
275,609
382,542
40,662
179,434
1,234,266

315,327

12,042,834

b) Social contributions mentioned above compromise AED. 1,000,000 (2020 :
AED. 1,000,000) paid to Fujairah Foundation for regions development and
AED. 21,602 (2020 : AED. 9,727) to the recognized institutions.
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24. QTHER INCOME

This items consists of the following :

2021 2020
AED AED
Sale of scrap 417,715 441,883
(Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment -- 62,947
Accounts payable written off - 1,262
Misceilaneous income 1,233,624 1,381,218
Total — Exhibit B 1,651,339 1,887,310
25. BASIC LOSS PER SHARE
This items consists of the following :
2021 2020
Loss for the year (AED) (102,738,529) (130,500,837)
Weighted average number of shares (Share) 355,865,320 355,865,320
Basie loss per share (AED. per share) — Exhibit B (0.289) {0.367)

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES/COMMITMENTS

i) Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities of the Group as at the consolidated statement of financial
position date amounted to AED. 3,897,143 (2020: AED. 1,072,550) representing
letters of credit.

ii) Commitments

Commitments of the Group as at the consolidated statement of financial position date
are as follows :

2021 2020
AED AED
Commitments for the purchase of property,

plant and equipment 3,269,652 17,189,396
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The Governance Report-2021

1- Implementing Corporate Governance System in the compan

In the year 2021, the Members of the Company’s Board of Directors were keen on implementing
the highest standards of Corporate Governance by reviewing and following up the company’s
governance framework and ensuring its integrity in order to achieve better returns for
shareholders and the sustainability of the company’s business for the long term. The company’s
corporate governance framework is based on the regulations and laws in force in the United Arab
Emirates in particular. The decision of the Board of Directors of the Securities and Commodities
Authority No. (3/RM for the year 2020) regarding the adoption of the corporate governance guide
for public joint-stock companies and the keenness of the Board to ensure the efficiency of
performance in the decision-making process. The Board also allocated sufficient time to ensure
the compatibility of the company’s strategy and vision with Shareholder expectations.

The Board of Directors shall conduct the evaluation of its performance and the performance of its
committees, providing the results in a report that contains recommendations to improve the
performance where required, in addition to the following work plan.

Fujairah Cement Industries is committed to adherence to the rules and the criteria of the
governance and their application mainly contributes to the best guidance and mentoring in order
to achieve its goal and meet the criteria required for responsibility, integrity, and transparency.

The Board of directors seeks to provide the good leadership and strategic control and oversight
and regulatory appropriate environment, as well as the integrity and responsibility commitment,
in the implementation of all the activities, and the application of the highest standards of corporate
governance as a basis to fulfill its responsibilities towards the company.

The application of the governance system with its advantages contributed to leading the change
and restructuring that promotes improved performance, durability, risk reduction, and
responsibility and transparency support. The company is complying to apply the rules of
disclosure and transparency in order to enhance confidence according to the rules and standards
that it follows in practicing the concepts and the principles of good governance. This ensures the
preservation of the interests of the company and shareholders' rights protection, and the
governance practices are applied in the light of the system and the instructions of the competent
authorities in order to elevate the administrative organization and the financial control due to its
critical importance in protecting the financial system from crises providing the protection for the
shareholders, and what related to the enhancing transparency due to its paramount importance
with the company shareholders.

The company board of directors shall apply the authority chairman resolution no. (3/R.M) OF
2020 concerning the approval of Joint Stock Companies Governance Guide.
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2- Statement of the ownership and transactions of the board members, their
spouses and their children in the Company’ securities during 2021.

Name Relation/title | Owned shares Total sell | Total purchase
in31/12/2021 processes processes

Sheikh/ Mohamed Bin Hamad Saif Al Sharqi Chairman Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Mohamed Ghaith Al Moheirbi Vice-chairman Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Abdul Ghafour Hashem Behroozian Board member 17,849 Nil Nil

Mr. Mohamed Sharief habib Mohammed Sevird wesaiar Nil Nil Nil
Rafeea Alawadhi

Mr. Fahd Ahmed Abdulla Al Shaer Board member Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Saeed Mobarak Al Zahmy Board member Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Waleed Abdulaziz Fageeh Board member Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Abdulatif Saad Abdulatif Al Dousari Board member Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Mohamed Saeed Al Douisan Board member 63,250 Nil Nil

Mr. Khaled Abdulla Hussein Abdulla Al Fadala | Board member Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Saad Abdulla Al Hanian Board member Nil Nil Nil

The transactions of the board of directors in the securities as per the article (14) of the
authority board of directors resolution no (2) of 2001 concerning the regulations as to
trading, clearing, settlement, transfer of ownership, and custody of securities.

- The chairman, the board members, the general manager, and/or any employees with
knowledge of company material information shall not trade, on their own, for their
account through a third party, or in any other capacity for another account, in the
Securities of the company or those of the mother, subsidiary, sister, or affiliate company,
if the Securities of any of these companies are listed on the Market, during the following
periods-

e Ten (10) working days prior to the announcement of any material information
unless such information was the result of sudden or unforeseen events.

e Fifteen (15) days prior to the end of the quarterly, semi-annual, or annual financial
period and until the financial statements have been disclosed.
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3- Board of director’s composition
The board of directors elected by the General assembly annual meeting on
18/06/2020.(2020:2022)
Name Category Qualifications | Their Their designation in Membership
memberships and | any other crucial
designations in supervisory,
other governmental or
shareholding commercial bodies
companies
Chairman of Fujairah’s
Sheikh/ Mohamed Bin Non- executive and MA in Project i eGovernment- Fujairah 2008
Hamad Saif Al Sharqi independent Management Government
representative
Mr. Mohamed Ghaith Al Non-executive and University texernmental works:.Abu
i . Dhabi government 1986
Moheirbi independent Graduate :
representative
Non-executive Government business
Mr. Abdul Ghafour University Chairman of Board of | Fujairah government
. & : e - 1980
Hashem Behroozian Graduate Directors of Fujairah | representative
Independent ’ :
National insurance
Director of Fujairah Free
Mr. Mohamed Sharief Non-executive Universi Board member of gglr;enﬁ}cﬁleoi?{nber
habib Mohammed Rafeea | & q b4 Fujairah national i 2017
Alawadhi Independent Graguate insurance ondevelapmientand
follow-up (FOIZ)
Non-executive . ;
Mr. Fahd Ahmed Abdulla & University R T i 2014
Al Shaer Graduate
Independent
Mr. Saeed Mobarak Al Non:exeeatlve University Lawyer- Boarc_l .
& member of Fujairah - 2014
Zahmy Graduate ; :
Independent national insurance
Mr. Waleed Abdulaziz Non-executive University Islar}r{nc Deve]opmfent Econgm:c advisor to
e & . Bank Representative | Islamic Development 2020
Independent Saudi Arabia Bank Saudi Arabia
Mr. Abdulatif Saad Non-executive Tfversity Execui_:lve Ch_alrman
Abdulatif Al Dousari & Graduate of Spring Uniterd ) 2017
Independent General Trading Co.
: 5 Former Treasury
Mr. Mohamed Saeed Al executive Wemressicy Businessman manager of Central Bank 2020
Douisan Graduate )
of Kuwait
; Representative of the : ;
Mr. Khaled Abdulla Non-executive University | Public institution for |\ oc ceneral Director of
g & : s the Public institution for 2020
Hussein Abdulla Al Fadala Graduate social security- . . .
Independent K . social security- Kuwait
uwait
Vice-chairman of
S board of directors -
Mr. Saad Abdulla Al University Bayt Co.
: & : 2008
Hanian Independent Graduate Chairman of Board of
p Directors of Saudi
Projects Holding Co.
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B- Women Representation Percentage in Board of Directors for 2021.

No women are represented on the Board of Directors for 2021.

C) Reasons for lack of women nomination for Board of Directors membership.

The current Board of Directors was elected on 18/06/2020. No woman applied for a
nomination.

D/ 1) Board of Director’s total paid remunerations for 2020:-

- No remunerations were paid to the members of the Board of Directors for the fiscal year
2020.

2- Board of Directors’ total proposed remunerations for 2021 to be presented at
General Assembly Meeting for approval.

-No remuneration for the year 2021.
3- Details of allowances received by Board members for attending Board of
Directors and Committees meetings for 2021.

- No allowances were paid for attending meetings of committees arising from the Board
of Directors for the fiscal year 2021. The number of meetings of the Board of Directors
committees is shown in Clauses 5/C and 6/C.

4- The details of the atiendance allowances, salaries, and additional fees received

by the board member other than attending the committee meetings with reasons:-

- No additional allowances, salaries, or fees were paid for the fiscal year 2021.
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E) Number of Board of Directors meetings held during the financial vear 2021
their dates and number of times of attendance.
Board of Directors Meetings Attendance for 2021
Name capacity 1 and Jrd
11-02-2021 | 12-08-2021 | 11-11-2021

Sheikh/ Mohamed Bin Hamad Saif Al Shargqi Chairman V v V.
Mr. Mohamed Ghaith Al Moheirbi Vice-Chairman v v v
Mr. Abdul Ghafour Hashem Behroozian Member V v v
Mr. Mohamed Sharief habib Alawadhi Member v V v
Mr. Saeed Mobarak Obaid Al Zahmy Member Vv V v
Mr. Fahd Ahmed Abdulla Al Shaer Member V V v
Mr. Waleed Abdulaziz Fageeh Member V V v
Mr. Abdulatif Saad Abdulatif Al Dousari Member v V v
Mr. Saad Abdulla Al Hanian Member v N N
Mr. Khaled Abdulla Hussein Abdulla Al Fadala Member v X v
Mr. Mohamed Saeed Al Dowisan Member v v v

(F) The number of the resolutions of the board of directors passed during the
fiscal year 2021 with the dates thereof.

e The First resolution- on 09/05/2021, it was resolved to approve the financial

statements for the First Quarter (31-03-2021)

(G) Board of Directors tasks and responsibilities delegated to the Executive

Management (the powers).

e The Board of Directors has not delegated any of their tasks to either Board

members or the Executive Management.

The executive Management powers are as follows:

- Manage FCI business activity and provide directives to the executive body in line
with FCI strategic objectives and policies decided by the Board of Directors,
provisions of law, and other legislation related to FCI business and activity.

- Provide the Board of Directors with precise periodical reports on FCI financial
positions, business, and actions taken in respect of risk management and internal
control system to enable the Board to review the set objectives, plans, and policies
and hold the Executive Management accountable for their performance.

- Submit recommendations in connection with any proposals they deem
appropriate to FCI business. Provide regulatory bodies with any required
information, data, and documents by provisions of law, regulations, instructions,
and decisions in pursuance to either of which they are issued.
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H) Dealings conducted with related parties during 2021 showing the nature of

relationship and e and amount of dealing.

No dealings have been conducted with related parties.

I) Company Organizational Structure (31/12/2021

EUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES
COMPANY ORGANIZATIONAL CHART
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]) Statement of FCI senior executive officers’ salaries and remunerations for 2021

Total Other cash or
Appointment Annual Remuneration | kind i
S office T Salary for 2021 remunerations
including for 2021 or due
allowances in the future
1 | General manager 01/04/1981 Nil Nil
2- | Deputy General manager 01/03/2016 Nil Nil
3- | Deputy General manager for
Administrative 23/05/1983 Nil Nil
Affairs
4- Deputj-( Gene}"al manager for 31/01,/2012 Nil Nil
financial affairs
5 | Works Manager 18/02/2007 Nil Nil
6 | Deputy Works Manager 16/12/2012 3,972,600 Nil Nil
7 | Senior Sales &Marketing 05/07/1982 Nil Nil
Manager
8 | Internal Audit Manger 12/02/2012 Nil Nil
S | Investors relation . ;
1 Nil
Management Manager e e B '
6
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4) External Auditor

A- Talal Abu Ghazala International, a holding company containing a group of professional
companies, a reputable worldwide accounts, financial and professional auditors, and
consultants firm since its foundation 33 years ago, Talal Abu Ghazala employs groups of
highly qualified and well-experienced Arab professionals, existing in every Arab capital
city to provide the experts services on the financial and industrial matters to meet the
requirements of customers. They all form a professional group, at the international level;
it provides different services in the business field. The institution started its activities
about Thirty-three years ago and practices its activities now under the name and by the
vision approved by Talal Abu Ghazala International, It started as an institution that
provides chartered accountants, accounts auditors, financial services for the business
community in the Arab Gulf.

The external audit firm is independent of FCI and its Board of Directors, practicing
accounting audit, verifying financial statements and controlling FCI accounts for the fiscal
year in which it has been appointed. The firm, for the sake of performing the duties, shall
have the right of access at any time to all FCI books, records and documents and to request
statements and notes that it deems necessary to obtain. The firm may verify FCI assets
and liabilities.

The external auditor attends General Assembly meetings, verifies procedures followed in
calling for the meeting and provides his opinion on financial statements as to whether
there are any violations of the provisions of FCI Articles of Incorporation, Companies Law
or General Assembly resolutions that might have taken place during the fiscal year.

B-
Audit firm name: Talal Abu Ghazala
The number of years spent as an external auditor for FCI: 3
The partner auditor name Ali Hassan Shalabi
The number of years spent as a partner auditor for FCI 3
accounts
Total financial statements audit fees for 2021 AED 225,000/=
Other special service fees and costs rather than financial 20,000

statements audit for 2021 (For Unclaimed Cash Dividends Prior To
01/03/2015 Reconciliation & Report to SCA).

Details and nature of the other provided services Nil

Other services delivered during 2021 by another auditor No other external

rather than FCI auditor: auditor

7
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C- No reservations have been incorporated by the external auditor in the interim or
annual financial statements for 2021.

5- Audit Committee.

A)- Declaration of Head of Audit Committee of his responsibility for the committee
system of the company and that he checked the mechanism of its work and
efficiency.

Mr. Fahad Ahmed Al Shaer, head of the Audit Committee, declares that he is responsible
for the committee system of the company and that he checked the mechanism of its work
and efficiency.

B) Names of Audit Committee members and statement of competencies and tasks
assigned to the Committee.

Name capacity Category Experience Membership
University
Fahd Ahmed Abdulla Nonexecutive& graduate/ government
Al Shaer Member Independent business -a member of 2014
National Takaful
Board.
University

graduate/Chairman of
Board of Directors of

Saac_l Abdulla Al Meiihiar Nonexecutive& Bait Company/ Vice-chairman 2008
Hanian Independent of Board of
Directors of Saudi
Projects Holding
Group
University
Abdulatif Saad Member Nonexecutive& Graduate/ Executive Chairman 2017
Abdulatif Al Dousari Independent of Spring United General
Trading Co
University
Khaled Abdulla eesnes Graduate/ Vice-General
Hussein Abdulla Al Member idependent Director of the Public 2020
Fadala institution for social security-
Kuwait
8
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The Objectives of Audit Committee:

The objective of the Audit Committee is to support the Board of Directors in respect of its
responsibility towards shareholders in connection with auditing FCI financial information
and matters regularly related to corporate governance to ensure effective utilization of
available resources. Moreover, it controls and follows up the independence of the auditor
and whether he is objective and reviews the internal control systems.

- The Audit Committee undertakes all competencies and tasks contained in Article (61) of
the resolution of the Authority's Board Chairman No (3/R.M) of 2020 concerning the
approval of the Joint Stock Companies Governance Guide.

C) The number of Audit Committee meetings and members' attendance 2021:
Audit Committee Meeting Attendance for 2021

Name Capacity 1st 2nd 3rd
11-02-2021 | 12-08-2021 | 11-11-2021
Mr. Fahd Ahmed Abdulla Al Shaer Head of the committee v v v
Mr. Saad Abdulla Al Hanian Member v N v
Mr. Khaled Abdulla Hussein Abdulla Al Member
V X Vv
Fadala
Mr. Abdulatif Saad Abdulatif Al Dousari Member V v v

6-Nominations and Remunerations Committee:-

A) Declaration of Head of nomination & remunerations committee of his responsibility
for the committee system of the companv and that he checked the mechanism of its work
and efficiency.

Mr.Abdul Ghafour Hashem Behroozian, head of the nomination & remunerations committee
declares that he is responsible for the committee system of the company and that he checked
the mechanism of its work and efficiency.
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B) Nomination & remunerations committee composition.

Name capacity Category Experience Membership
Mr. Abdul Ghafour Hashem Nonexecutive University  Graduate/  Government
Behroozian & business-
chairman | Independent Chairman of Board of Directors of 1980
Fujairah
National insurance
Mr. Mohamed Sharief habib Nonexecutive University Graduate/ Director of
Mohammed Rafeea Alawadhi & Fujairah Free Zone Authority- Fujairah,
Member | Independent Board 2017
member Of Fujairah
Foundation for Regions Development
Mr. Saeed Mobarak Al Zahmy Nonexecutive University Graduate/ Lawyer- Board
Member | & member of Fujairah national insurance 2014
[ndependent

The Objective of the Nomination & remunerations committee

The objective of the Nomination and Remunerations Committee is to determine
nomination policies and criteria for Board of Directors membership, periodical review of
Board’s requirements for capabilities, ensure the independence of members, prepare
human resources and training policies including aspects of conflict of interests members
membership of other companies’ Board of Directors together with preparing policies for
awards, benefits, incentives, and salaries relating to the Board members and staff and
review such policies on annual basis.

- The above Nomination Committee undertakes all competencies and tasks contained in
59 of the authority chairman decision no. (3/R.M) of 2020 concerning the approval of the
Joint Stock Companies Governance Guide.

C) - The number of Nominations and Remunerations Committee Meetings and
members attendance in person:

Nominations and Remunerations Committee Meetings Attendance for 2021

Name Capacity 1st
10-02-2021
Mr. Ghafour Hashem Behroozian Chairman \
Mr. Saeed Mobarak Al Zahmy Member \
Mr. Mohamed Sharief habib Mohammed Rafeea Alawadhi Member \
10
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7- The supervision and Follow-up Committee of insiders’ transactions.

A- Mr. Khalil Saeed Obaid Al Nuimi — chairman of the insiders’ dealings follow-u
and supervisory committee declares that he is responsible for the system of the
committee in the company and that he reviewed the mechanism of its work and
checked its efficiency.

B-Names of committee members:-
1- Mr. Khalil Saeed Obaid Al Nuimi.
2- Mr. Ashraf Abdelkader Al Sayed.

The committee is responsible for following up and supervising insider’s dealings and
properties and maintains a register in their respect.

C- Summary of tasks undertaken during 2021
1- Updating FCI list of insiders’ on the Website of Financial Market continually.

2- Notifying FCI insiders of the prohibition periods of their trading in FCI securities each
in due course.

3- Continuous follow up of FCI insiders’ trading movement

4- Furnish the authority and stock market with the updated list at the beginning of the
fiscal year.

8- No other committees ratified bv the Board of Directors exist

9) Internal Audit System

- The Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility for FCI internal audit system for
reviewing the system’s operational mechanism and ensuring its efficiency.

FCI has established an effective Internal Audit Department. Ramakrishnan Subramanian, the
head of the Department and chartered Accountant, holder of BA in Corporate Secretaryship
was appointed along with three professionally qualified and experienced assistants.

- The Department aims at implementing a precise and robust system dealing with delivering
and developing departmental performance efficiency and FCI operations efficiency and FCI
internal control in terms of continuous auditing operational results, examining financial records,
assessing internal control system and assisting Senior Management with enhancing FCI
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operations efficiency and effectiveness in respect of discovering manipulation and monitoring
errors in FCI financial system.

- The company Internal Audit Department performs its duties following Article (68) the
authority chairman resolution no. (3/R.M) concerning the approval of the Joint Stock
Companies Governance Guide.

The Department has the independence sufficient to perform its tasks and directly report to the
person in charge of the internal audit system. FCI adopts implementation of international
standards of internal audit towards efficiently achieving the required objectives and more cost-
effective as reflected in the bases of internal audit for ensuring the following:

1- Reasonability and conformity of information and data.
2- The extent of consistency with policies, plans, procedures, regulations, laws and instructions.
3- Extent of safeguarding FCI assets and property.

4- Extent of consistency of set activities, operations, and programs with the set purposes and
objectives and ensure being applied by supervisory bodies according to the set plans and
objectives. The internal Audit Department prepares an annual control plan in liaison with the
Audit Committee and Departmental Managers or Heads of other FCI Sections.

The Internal Audit Department Manager submits detailed reports to the Board of directors on
internal audit system assessment demonstrating and providing proposals for bridging gaps in
the internal audit system periodically when required at any time as he deems as the exigencies
of such assessment may so require.

Concerning the internal audit department dealing with FCI major issues or those disclosed in
reports and annual accounts, the internal audit department implements governance rules and
constantly verifies compliance with the provisions of law and decisions that may bridge gaps
in the internal audit system through adhering to the following:

1) Basic control including control over financial affairs, operations, and risk management
2) Ensure FCI’s ability to respond to changes in their business and external environment.

3) The extent of implementing international regulations, procedures, policies, and submission
of necessary reports to both the Audit Committee and Board of Directors.

e The audit department has not recorded any major violations or problems within FCI

during 2021
e 3 reports were issued by the internal audit department to the Board of Directors

during the fiscal year 2021.
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10- No violations have been committed during the vear ended 31/12/2021.

11- FCI contribution for 2021 to the local community development and safeguarding of
the environment:

Cash contributions:

As a part of Corporate Social Responsibility FCI participated in an amount of AED 1,021,602/-
in 2021 reflected in the support of the public national organizations.

As a part of Corporate social responsibility, FCI supported Tennis and Country club, Fujairah
by sponsoring ITF Women World Tennis Tournament.

- FCI climate Risk Mitigation, FCI invested proactively on the following issues:
1- Green belt development (Tree plantation) in FCI & Camp accommodations: AED 20,000.

2- DUSTEX Spray on Quarry Roads to control Fugitive Emissions: AED 100,000.
In-kind contributions:

- FCI contributed to the support of the low-income nationals by assisting them in meeting their
cement needs.

- FCI contributed to the provision of professional training for university students in different
scientific fields.

- FCI carried out road repair works between Dibba and Al Taween and reforested the whole
roads in order to preserve the environment.

- FCI exerts big efforts to reduce the emissions of the dust resulting from trucks that transport
the raw material from the quarry to the factory and within the factory by using friendly
environment chemicals for the unpaved roads.

- FCI ensures to provide a safe and healthy environment for all employees by following the
professional security and safety rules and training the employees in all fields of security, safety,
public health, and first aid.

- FCI is committed to maintain a clean surrounding environment and monitoring the air quality
by using the emission measurement devices in the air, and prepare and deliver the reports to the
ministry of environment to achieve a friendly environment cement industry.
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12- General Information:-

A) Monthly share price for 2021

Month Minimum price Maximum price Closing
January 1.33 1.33 1.33
February 153 1.38 1.33
March 125 1.33 1.33
April 1.32 1.32 1.82
May 0.70 1.33 0.70
June 0.48 0.65 0.55
July 0.53 0.58 0.56
August 0.51 0.56 0,53
September 0.51 0.56 0.51
October B.51 0.66 0.66
November 0.54 (.77 0.56
December 0.58 0.67 0.58

B) Performance of FCI share compared with General Market and Sector Index for
2021

A, weren=. Symbeol Trade Log - FCI-Fujairah Cement Industries

P W
From Jan 1, 2021 To Dec 31, 2021 Ganerated 2022-Feb-14 13:13

Trading Value(AED) over Penod (Month)

15,747.015.02

27,293,824
555
202104 202105 2021-06 202107 202108 2021-09 2021-10 2021-11 2021-12
Reglar Trades
| CLOSE (AED) HIGH (AED) (AED Value (AED) | VOLURME | | Change % Change
2021 o4 1.320 1.320 1.320 1.320 13,023.12 9,866 E o.coc o.00
2021 o5 1.150 0.704 1.230 Q.704 674,740.00 720,243 22 (0.616) (46.57)
2021 06 0.634 0.555 0.656 0.486 4,418,832.48 7,995,157 214 (0.148) 21.18)
2021 o7 0.579 0.560 0.585 0.530 531,158.86 937,000 36 0.c05 0.80
2021 ¢:] 0.565 0.530 0.569 0.51C 2,672,003.48 5,081,164 34 (0.030) (5.38)
2021 [re] 0.521 0.5310 0.565 0.510 1,224,830.32 2,335,649 20 (0.020) (37N
2021 10 0.570 0.666 0.666 0.510 3,157.612.69 5,416,695 125 0.156 30.59
2021 1 0.600 0.562 0.770 0.540 3.016.229.87 4,738,073 ag (0.104) (15.62)
2021 12 0.640 0.585 0.670 0.585 38.584.20 59,976 14 0.022 4.09

15,747,015.02 27,293,824 555
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C) Shareholders’ Ownershi

Distribution on 31/12/2021

Share Individuals Companies Government of Total
classification (Fujairah & Abu
Dhabi)
loeal 65.687.982 7.112.696 87.341.925 160.142.603
Arab 60.832.669 132.362.640 | = - 193.195.309
Foreigner 2527408 | e | e 2.527.408
Total 129.048.059 139.475.336 87.341.925 355.865.320

D- Shareholders who own 5% or more of FCI capital as of 31/12/2021.

Number of shares

Government of Fujairah
[slamic Development Bank
Nasser Ali Mohamed Khammas Al

82,541,250
25,300,000
59,635,524

Yammahi

Wafra International Investment/Clients

NBK Capital - AC/Electronic 1

Kuwait Midd East Fin-Inve-Co-ELC-1

40,753,991

25,295,552

18,041,539

% of capital
23.194%

07.109%
16.758

11.452%
0.7.108%
05.070%

E- Shareholders Distribution according to the amount of ownership as of

31/12/2021.
5 Share ownership Number of | Number of Owned share percentage of
Shareholders | owned shares capital

1 Less than 50,000 1309 8,519,152 2.394%

2 From 50,000 to less than 500,000 181 26,191,736 7.360%

3 From 500,000 to less than 5,000.000 41 59,148,721 16.621%

4 More than 5,000,000 8 262,005,711 73.625%

Total 1539 355,865,320 100%
15
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F) Actions taken in respect of investors relations disciplines:

- The accountant Ashraf Abdul Kader Al Sayed has been appointed to be responsible for all
tasks related to investors relations subject to the requirements contained in Article (51) of the
authority chairman resolution no. (3/R.M) of 2020 concerning the approval of the Joint Stock
Companies Governance Guide.

- FCI website has been fully updated in both Arabic and English languages. A page for the
investors has been dedicated, updated and maintained continually in line with the international
standards including all means of communication with the Investors Relations Department.

- FCI is committed to publishing information and data being disclosed to supervisory bodies,
markets, or the public on the FCI website.

- Investors Relations Department Contacts:

Telephone: 0097192223111, Fax: 0097192227718, P.O: 600 Fujairah
Email: hofci(@fciho.ae

- Investors Relations page link on FCI website:
www.fujairahcement.com/ar/fci/investor-relations-ar
www.fujairahcement.com/ar/fci/investor-relations

G) There were no special resolutions passed to the General assembly convened
during 2021.

H) Name and date of appointment of the Reporter of Board of Directors meetings.
Mr. Abdulla Ahmed Ali Al-Humaidi- 01-02-2021.

I) Key Events during 2021:

e Announcement of a new project of Ready-mix Concrete Plant in Feb 2021 as a
Subsidiary of Fujairah Cement Industries.

o Despite of Covid-19 pandemic, FCI has substantial production of clinker.

e FCI obtained ISO-9001:2015 re-certification as per the new standard on Quality
Management System.

e FCI also obtained ISO-14001:2014 re-certification as per the new standard on
Environmental Management System.

e FCI also obtained ISO-45001:2018 re-certification as per the new standard on
Occupational Health & Safety Management System.

e FClI registered the least power consumption of cement mills.

o FCI has reduced the dependency on electricity.
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) Emiratization Percentages:

1- Emiratization Percentage for 2019: 14.6 %
2- Emiratization Percentage for 2020: 15.0 %
3. Emiratization Percentage for 2021: 15.0 %

K) FCI Innovative Projects and Initiatives:

e FCI is planning to replace 40% coal with RDF (Refuse Derived Fuel) as fuel,
which will reduce the GHG (Greenhouse gas) Emissions and will support the
community by helping to avoid municipality waste landfilling.

e FCI is in the process of implementing ISO-17025:2017, Laboratory
Management system, in its Quality Lab. This will help in achieving better
quality Clinker and Cement for Global marketing as a part of business strategy.

e As per Fujairah Environmental Authority directives, FCI has to connect the
online emission Monitoring System to the server of Fujairah Environmental
Authority (FEA). This way FEA will have online access to emission data.

e FCI used waste materials like used Carbon Dust as an Alternate Fuel being fed
in the Preheater of the kiln. Carbon Dust is a byproduct of the Aluminum
Industry and a fuel for the Cement Industry. We also use used bag filters,

- wooden waste, and waste tires as an alternate fuel.
ke

Internal Auditor Head of Nomination and Head of Auditjn® comtittee

websites:

- Fujairah Cement Industries www.fujairahcement.com
- Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange www.adx.ae
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES
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SUSTAINABILITY ANNUAL REPORT 2021
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURE-2021
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Fujairah Cement Industries SUSTAINABILITY ANNUAL REPORT-2021

FCI_contribution for 2021 to local community development & conservation of
environment:-

1- FCl Board of directors is greatly concerned with undertaking the responsibility
for the service of the society and surrounding environment. FCl seeks through
its staff to participate in all National Occasions & Socials events of their
different religious, cultural programs, and sports activities.

2- Sustainable Development figures prominently in FCI’s Environmental, Social &
Governance Disclosure Plan-2021.

3- In response to the Covid-19 outbreak:-

- FCl management along with the Ministry of Health & Prevention (MOHAP),
the Government of Fujairah conducted 11 times PCR swab tests for the
employees during July-December 2021. Massive sterilization was done in
the factory and in camp accommodation.

- The employees supported and complied with the Covid-19 safety rules by
maintaining social distancing, body temperature measurement at security
gates, use of hand sanitizations, and facemasks resulting in a minimum
number of positive cases.

- The first dose of the Covid-19 vaccine was given by MOHAP on 12" January
2021. The second dose was given on 7" February 2021 and the Booster dose
was given on 29" September 2021.

4- FCl is committed to reducing Green House Gas (GHGs) Emissions by using
Alternate Fuels, in the framework of the UN Convention on Climate Change.
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Cash Contributions:

As a part of Corporate Social Responsibility FCI participated in an amount of AED
1,021,602/- in 2021 reflected in the support of the public national organizations.

As a part of Corporate Social Responsibility, FCI supported Tennis and Country Club
Fujairah by sponsoring ITF Women World Tennis Tournament.

For Climate Risk Mitigation, FCl invested proactively on the following issues:-

¢ Green Belt Development (Tree Plantation) in FCl & Camp Accommodations:
20,000 AED

e DUSTEX Spray on Quarry Roads to control Fugitive Emissions: 100,000 AED

In-Kind contributions:

¢ FCl contributed to the provision of cement for assisting low-income citizens
from the local community.

o FCl provided training opportunities for university students of different
technical specializations.

¢ FClrepaired the connecting Dibba Al-Taween Road leading to Quarry. The road
was damaged due to flash floods.

o FClI sprayed dust suppression chemical on the unpaved roads connecting FCI
quarry and inside the factory to minimized volatility of dust and soil for
conserving the environment.

e FCl undertakes to always fulfill its obligations to provide a good and secured
working environment for all staff.

¢ FClis committed to keeping Good Housekeeping in the factory and surrounding
area of the factory. An emission monitoring instrument has been installed for
measuring dust emission in the air and notify Ministry of Climate Change &
Environment (MOCCAE) of such readings as to make the cement Industry more
environment friendly.
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Key Events during 2021:-

¢ Announcement of a new project of Ready-mix Concrete Plant in Feb 2021
as a subsidiary of Fujairah Cement Industries.

e Despite the Covid-19 pandemic, FCl has substantial production of clinker.

e FCl obtained 1SO-9001:2015 Re-certification as per the new standard on
Quality Management System.

e FCl also obtained 1SO-14001:2014 Re-certification as per the new standard
on Environmental Management System.

¢ FCl also obtained 1SO-45001:2018 Re-certification as per the new standard
on Occupational Health & Safety Management System.

e FClregistered the least Power consumption of Cement mills.

e FCl has reduced the dependency on electricity supplied by Federal
Electricity & Water Authority (FEWA).

FCl innovative projects & initiatives:

e FClis planning to replace 40% coal with RDF as fuel, which will reduce the
GHG Emissions and will support the community by helping to avoid
municipality waste landfilling.

e As per Fujairah Environmental Authority directives, FCI has to connect the
Online Emission Monitoring System to the server of Fujairah Environmental
Authority (FEA). This way FEA will have online access to emission data.

e FCl is in the process of implementing 1S0-17025:2017, Laboratory
Management System, in its Quality Lab. This will help in achieving better
quality Clinker and Cement for Global marketing as a part of business
strategy.

e [n 2021, FCl used waste material like, used Carbon Dust as an alternate Fuel
being fed in the Preheater of the Kiln. Carbon Dust is a byproduct of the
Aluminum industry and a fuel for the Cement Industry. We also use used
bag filters, wooden waste, and waste tires as an alternate fuel.

4

FACTORY : P. O. Box :11477, Dibba, Fujairah 3pumall La— VVEYY i o s t;*"“.
e suTRana ) G il gyl LYl
Tel. : 09-2444011 gl e
Fax : 09-2444016, 2444061 150 3001:2008 TEEE1T , sl

Email: fujcem82@eim.ae Certificate fujcem82@eim.ae : 1,580 byl

Na. 10A-0072.



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURE-2021

FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES PJSC

* ENVIRONMENTAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS ( i.e; ENVIRONMENTAL KPIs)

Metric

Remarks

El. GHG Emissions

Total Green House Gases emissions = 950 Gg of CO; per annum.

E2.Emission Intensity

e Total GHG emissions per torg.a‘ Clinker: 0.326 of CO;/ tonnes of Clinker.

E3. Energy Usage

Total amount of Energy Directly Consumed:  21,248.79 MWh
Total Amount of energy indirectly consumed:  253,023.93 MWh

E4. Energy Intensity

ES. Energy Mix

Total Direct energy usage per tonnes of Clinker:
a) UNIT1 =82 KWh/tonnes of Clinker
b) UNIT2 =67 KWh/tonnes of Clinker

Cement Grinding: 35 KWh/ tonnes of cement.

TPP : 72.48%

FEWA : 7.74%

WHR :19.76 %

E6. Water Usage

The total water requirement for the facility is 1000 m*/day divided in different uses :

a) 100 m?/day used for domestic purposes.

b) 900 m?/day used for industrial purposes.
The water for industrial purposes is being used for, Process Cooling, Boiler make up, cooling tower
makeup and dust suppression for the activities in the cement plant.
Domestic wastewater is being collected in the septic tank and disposed through Tankers of Dibba
Municipality.

E7. Environmental Operations

We have Quality, Health & Safety, and Environment & Energy Management Policy in Place. The
Management is committed towards Quality Control, Waste Management, and Water Management
& Energy Management.

E8. Environmental Oversight

Our Top Management periodically discusses and manage the Sustainability Issues. Besides these, we
monthly conduct Environment Committee Meeting where we sort out all the issues pertaining to
Environment Protection and Climate Change.

Our Top Management always focuses on Sustainability issues as an Official Agenda. We conduct

Environment Health and Safety Meeting on Monthly Basis. The raised issues are discussed and
Corrective actions are implemented as a part of continual improvement.




E9. Climate Risk Mitigation

e For Climate Risk Mitigation, FCl invested proactively on the following issues:
a) Green Belt Development(Tree Plantation) in FCI Plant & Camp: 20,000 AED
b) DUSTEX Spray on Quarry Roads to control Fugitive Emissions: 100,000 AED

% SOCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS ( i.e; SOCIAL KPIs)

Metric

Remarks

$1.CEO Pay Ratio
$2. Gender Pay Ratio

e Ratio: CEO total compensation to median Full Time Equivalent (FTE) total compensation is 20:1

e Ratio: 3.5:1

$3. Employee Turnover

e Employee Turnover: 7.5%

S4. Gender Diversity

Gender diversity percentage based on :
e Total enterprise headcount :Male 97%, Female 3%
e Entry-and mid-level positions : Male 90%, Female 10%
e Senior-and executive-level positions : Male 100%

S5. Temporary Worker Ratio

e We don't have part-time workers.

S$6. Non Discrimination

e We do not discriminate employees based on caste and creed. Commitment to creating a diverse, open, equal,
and harassment-free work environment

§7. Injury Rate

e Average Injury Rate for 2021=2.76
e No fatalities

S8. Global Health & Safety

e FClis ISO-45001:2018(Occupational Health & Saféty Ménagement System Certified Company.
e Ensuring Healthy and safe working conditions for employees & contractors is a fundamental key to corporate
social responsibility and is one of the most important issues for FCI.

e The management is committed to Health & Safety of employees by providing better working environment

complying with all statutory requirements.




$9. Child & Forced Labor

FCI Fulfill its compliance with all applicable labor-related laws & regulations.

Strict prohibition of child labor, forced labor and employment discrimination. FCI is Committed for creating a
diverse, open, equal and harassment-free work environment. We have Zero-tolerance for any human rights
violations.

$10. Human Rights

FCl is dedicated to protecting its employees' rights and interests and therefore it strictly complies with labor-
related laws and regulations. We place the utmost value on human rights in our operations, and we treat all
employees, including contract employees and interns, with the same dignity and respect.

$11. Nationalization

2017:13.8%
2018:14.6%
2019: 14.6%
2020:15.0%
2021:15.0%

$12. Community Investment

FCl is greatly concerned with undertaking the responsibility for the service of the society and surrounding
environment.

FCl seeks through its employee to participate in all the national occasions and social events of the different
religious, cultural and social activities.

FCI participates and sponsors annually in Fujairah International Mining Forum and Expo organized by FNRC in
Collaboration with UAE Ministry of Energy and Industry and Arab Industrial Development and Mining
Organization.

As a Part of Corporate Social Responsibility, FCI sponsored the ITF Women World Tennis Tournament organized
by Tennis & Country Club, Fujairah.




“* GOVERNANCE KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (i.e; GOVERNANCE KPIs)

Metric

Remarks

G1. Board Diversity

No women representation in Board of Directors in 2021.
No women applied for the nomination for the Current Board of Directors post.

G2. Board Independence

The company Prohibits the CEO from serving as board chair.
Independent and non-executive board members occupy 10 board seats.
Executive Board members occupy 1 seat on the Board of Directors.

G3. Incentivized Pay

G4. Supplier Code of Conduct

G5. Ethics & Prevention of
Corruption

G6. Data Privacy

We provide ample opportunities and motivational incentives to employees. Some of them are Performance Linked
Incentives, Good Work Awards, Letters of Appreciation, Special Increments, Promotions, and Nomination to
external training programs in UAE and abroad.

FCI ensures that all suppliers follow its code of conduct.

The employeesﬁ éertiﬁ} ﬁlrriuﬁt’heir7d7etlaratioin7form, tiﬁatﬁtihéyrare not ihdulged in corruption. prﬁic_e_s_,_r-{éi_ther they
are involved in any business in FCI
All the employees have formally certified their compliance as per the prevention of corruption policy.

IT department of FCI keeps vigilant about data protection policy.
The Company has adopted reasonable security practices and procedures to ensure that the Sensitive Personal
Information/ Official Data is preserved in a secured manner.

G7. Sustaiﬁébﬁity Reportiné

G8. Disclosure Practices

FCI publishes Sustainability Report integrated with Annual Report B
FCI publishes Sustainability reports of FCI based on UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).
FCI Sustainability Report is in line with UN Sustainable Development Goals

G9. External Assurance

FCI has plans for our Sustainability Data to be verified by a 3 Party in the upcoming years.






